
 

For requests for further information 
Contact:  Cherry Foreman 
Tel:  01270 686460 
E-Mail: cherry foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies 
 

 

 

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Assets with 
the Cabinet Member for Communities 

 
Agenda 

 

Date: Tuesday, 7th July, 2015 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Room G1 - Ground Floor, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 
Sandbach CW11 1HZ 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 

non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 

 
 
3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 

members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the body 
in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the 
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking 
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not 
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 
hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three 
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will 
enable an informed answer to be given. 

 
4. Land adjacent to the Salinae Centre, Middlewich  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To consider the transfer of this land to Middlewich Town Council. 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Version 5  

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 
CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION AND ASSETS   WITH THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITIES  
 

Report of: Executive Director Economic Growth and Prosperity 
Subject/Title: Memorial Stone at Land off Salinae Centre, Middlewich 
Date of Meeting: 7 July 2015 
Portfolio Holder: Councillors Don Stockton and Les Gillbert 

                                                                  
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To consider a request from Middlewich Town Council to transfer a parcel 

of Public Open Space land adjacent to the Salinae Centre, Middlewich, 
Cheshire CW10 9DG (shown edged red on the attached plan) by way of 
125 year lease as part of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and 
Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils process. 
 

 
2.0      Decision Requested 
 
2.1 Subject to the response to the public space advertisements referred to in 

8.3, to transfer by way of 125 year lease land adjacent to the Salinae 
Centre, Middlewich, Cheshire CW10 9DG (shown edged red on the 
attached plan) to Middlewich Town Council on the terms stated in 3.3 
and other terms to be agreed by the Property Services Manager.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 On 5th September 2011 it was decided by the Cabinet that a number of 

properties (Appendix A properties) should be transferred to the Town or 
Parish Council for the area in which the properties are located as a first 
phase of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town 
and Parish Councils process and that certain other properties (Appendix 
B properties) be considered for transfer with the decisions as to whether 
to sell being delegated to the relevant portfolio holder(s).   

 
3.2 It was reported to Cabinet that every transfer or lease would be on the 

following terms namely that:  
 

• The transfer/ lease would protect community use of the asset. 
 

• The transfer/ lease would take place for a nominal value (£1) and the 
Town Council will be wholly responsible for the service and the asset 
save insofar as the Council has residual legal responsibilities under 
contracts or legislative provisions. 
   

• If allowing change of use, the agreement would  secure an overage 
payment for the Council if there is a future planning permission which 
enhances the value of the asset or the Town  Council  sells  the asset 
within an 15 year period with increase in value/ proceeds of sale 
returning to  Cheshire East on a reducing sliding scale. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



Version 5  

Cabinet resolved that delegated authority be given to identified officers 
to finalise standard terms for all the transfers. Standard heads of terms 
were subsequently approved by the relevant officers and the Portfolio 
Holder for Places and Strategic Capacity. 
 

 
3.3  This land was neither an Appendix A nor an Appendix B property but 

has since been identified as an appropriate asset to be devolved to the 
Town Council. The 125 year lease to Middlewich Town Council will be 
based upon the standard heads of terms and, as it will prohibit a change 
of use, no overage agreement will be required. 

 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1  Middlewich 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Cllr Bernice Walmsley 
 Cllr Simon Mcgrory 
 Cllr Michael Parsons 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction  
                                                             - Health 
 
6.1  The 125 year lease is in line with the Council’s policy of transfer and 

devolution of assets to Town and Parish Councils for a nominal value. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 The existing use has an unrestricted value which is less than £500 and 

therefore the Council proposes to forego the capital receipt in this 
instance to support the Erection of this Memorial Stone. 

 
7.2 The transfer to Middlewich Town Council would have a small financial 

impact on CEC budget in 15-16, in respect of operational cost savings 
relating to grounds maintenance. 

 
 
8.0        Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 The Council has no power to dispose of property by a freehold transfer 

unless it secures the best consideration reasonably obtainable or it has 
Secretary of State consent. Under the Local Government Act 1972 
General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 the Secretary of State gave 
general consent to  disposals for less than best consideration if: 

 
(a) The disposing authority considers that the purpose for which the land 

is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the achievement of 
any one or more of the following objects of the whole or any part of 
its area, or all or any persons resident or present in its area:  

Page 2



Version 5  

a. The promotion or improvement of economic well-being; 
b. The promotion or improvement of social well-being; 
c. The promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;  

 
 
(b)  the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be  

disposed of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed 
£2m; and  

 
(c) All other conditions and requirements of the Consent are satisfied.  

 
8.2 In transferring assets the Council must behave prudently to fulfil its 

fiduciary duty 
 

8.3 All disposals must comply with the European Commission’s State aid 
rules.  When disposing of land at less than best consideration the 
Council is providing a subsidy to the occupier of the land.  In such cases 
the Council must ensure that the nature and the amount of the subsidy 
complies with State aid rules, failure to comply means that the aid is 
unlawful and may result in the benefit being recovered with interest from 
the recipient.  If the occupier receives less than approximately £155,000 
(200,000 Euros) in state aid over a 3 year period then the De Minimis 
Regulation will apply (small amounts of aid are unlikely to distort 
competition). 

 
As there is open space within the land outlined red on the attached plan, then it 
will be necessary to advertise the potential disposal of the Garden under the 
provision of the Local Government Act. The adverts have been placed in the 
press and the period for representations to be made expired on the 3rd June.  
The Council received no objections to the proposal to dispose the Public Open 
Space land. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The 125 year lease will prohibit a change of use of the Memorial Stone. 
 
10.0 Background Information 

 
10.1 The purpose of this request is to enable Middlewich Town Council to 

erect a Memorial Stone at the field adjacent to Salinae Centre, 
Middlewich that commemorates people who lived and worked on the 
canals and the salt works of Middlewich. 
 

10.2 The extent of the land required by Middlewich Town Council is shown 
outlined in red on the attached plan for identification purposes. The 
Client Service (Environment) has confirmed that the land is surplus to 
operational requirements, that the area has been omitted from the 
‘Open Space Survey 2012 and they support the proposal at this 
location. In addition to this they have confirmed that the site is dry and 
the Folk and Boat activities are usually around the periphery of the site 
so the proposed sculpture in the middle will not interfere with these. 
 

Page 3



Version 5  

10.3 This is essentially a Cheshire West and Chester project exploring the 
salt route from Middlewich to Frodsham and therefore at Middlewich, it 
is the sole representative in Cheshire East. The aim is to promote the 
various sites along the route, use interpretation, workshops, and 
educational programmes to link the salt route together. 

 
10.4 Middlewich Town Council would like to develop the work with the 

boating and salt industry theme of Wych House Lane and a meeting 
has been held over potential sites and the Salinae Field off Wych 
House Lane has been identified as a perfect place to erect a simple 
stone sculpture that commemorates people who worked there and the 
boaters who carried cargo to the ports sometimes in hazardous 
conditions. 
 

10.5 The height will be just less than 2 metres at 6ft 6 inches; the width 
depends on the quarry but for guidance Middlewich Town Council is 
looking at between 3ft – 5ft depending on the quarry and constraints of 
planning regulations. The stone will have foundations of around 3ft, 
again depending on the height of the stone. 
 

 
 
11.0 Access to Information 
 

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by   
contacting the report writer: 

 
  Name: Lee Beckett 

 Designation: Surveyor 
            Tel No: 01270 686122  
             Email:  lee.beckett@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

Page 4



3

1

Town Bridge

Rosemount

Salinae

Wych

MewsHouse

LB

PCs

TCB

SD

33.5m

31.7m

32.6m

34.4m

PO
Builder's

Yard

Towing Path

Boat Yard

Shelter

PH

(Clinic and Day Centre)

Car ParkA 5
33

LEWIN STREET

SEA BANK

LE
AD

SM
ITH

Y S
TR

EE
T

Cottage

Lex House

Kinderton House

The Boar's Head (PH)
Hotel

Hall

11

Victoria

LANE
WYCH-HOUSE

Building

9

2

6 5

18

16

24

19

33a

32

36

27

35

25

12 33

13
23

14

4

10

29

8

2

19

13

9

5

TCB

11

6

PH

36

27

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100049045 

±
1:1,250

@A4

Salinae Elderley Persons Centre
Plan ref: PW 27805
Date: 8/4/15

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Land adjacent to the Salinae Centre, Middlewich
	27805 Salinae EPC plan


